
   

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
 

March 28, 2024       3:00 P.M.  
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Ave 

Sheboygan WI 53081 
Room 302 

 
 
Remote Access: +1 319-449-2791 
Meeting ID: 132 874 572# 
Virtual: meet.google.com/xjh-eruh-vdx 
 
Members of the Committee may be appearing remotely. Persons wanting to observe the 
meeting are encouraged to listen remotely. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
  

 
  

    
 

 

    

   

     

   

    

  

   

  

  

Posted on  3/26/2024  at  2:00  pm

*AGENDA*

Call to Order

Certification  of  Compliance  with  Open Meeting Law

Correspondence

Approval of Minutes for the  February 29, 2024  Executive Committee  Meeting

Consideration of  Resolution No. 27  -  Authorizing the  Finance Committee and Finance Director to 
Balance Over Budget Departmental Accounts

Consideration of  Resolution No. 28  -  Purchase of Commercial Hangars (Part of Parcel No. 59026-
384630)

Consideration of  Ordinance No. 16  -  Amending Chapter 12 - County Emergency Medical Services
Council

Consideration of Amendments to County Code  –  Chapter 2

County Administrator’s Report
(The  County Administrator’s Report  is a summary of key activities. No action will be taken by the 
Executive Committee resulting from the report, unless it is a specific item on the agenda.)

Consideration and Approval of Attendance at Other Meetings/Functions

Review  and  Approve Vouchers

Next  Meeting Date:  To Be Determined

Adjournment

file:///C:/Users/osthepjo/Downloads/meet.google.com/xjh-eruh-vdx


   

 

 
Prepared by:   
Peggy Osthelder Vern Koch 
Recording Secretary Committee Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
NOTE: Members of the public are invited to offer comments on topics which may or may not appear on the Agenda, and Committee members 
may discuss such matters, but no action may be taken by the Committee on non-Agenda topics.  Individual speakers may be limited to no 
more than five minutes.    
 
A majority of the members of the County Board of Supervisors or of any of its committees may be present at this meeting to listen, observe 
and participate. If a majority of any such body is present, their presence constitutes a "meeting" under the Open Meeting Law as interpreted 
in State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village Board, 173 Wis. 2d 553 (1993), even though the visiting body will take no action at this meeting.   
 
If listed as an agenda item, the “Administrator’s Report” is a summary of key activities for the previous month and planned for upcoming 
months including performance evaluations, liaison committee issues and County Board issues.  No action will be taken by the Executive 
committee resulting from the report unless it is a specific item on the agenda.  
 
Persons with disabilities needing assistance to attend or participate are asked to notify the County Board Chairman/County Administrator’s 
Office at 920-459-3103 prior to the meeting so that accommodations may be arranged. 

Posted on  3/26/2024  at  2:00  pm



 

 

SHEBOYGAN COUNTY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Administration Building 
508 New York Ave 

Sheboygan, WI 53081 
Room 302 

 

 
February 29, 2024 Called to Order: 3:00 PM Adjourned: 4:09 PM 

 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:        Vernon Koch, Keith Abler, William Goehring, Curt Brauer, and Edward 

Procek  
  

 
ALSO PRESENT:               Supervisor Tom Wegner, Supervisor Jerry Jorgensen, Crystal Fieber, 

Bryan Olson, Alayne Krause, and Peggy Osthelder 
  
  

 
Chairman Koch called the meeting to order at 3:00 PM.  Peggy Osthelder certified compliance with the 
open meeting law.  The meeting notice was posted at 1:30 PM on February 27, 2024. 
 
There was no correspondence to present to the Committee. 
 
Supervisor Goehring made a motion to approve the minutes of the January 25, 2024 Executive 
Committee Meeting.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried.   
 
The Committee discussed Resolution No. 25 - Approving Municipal Access, Storm Sewer, Lighting, 
Camera & Safety Equipment Easement with Village of Elkhart Lake.  Transportation Director Bryan 
Olson gave an overview and answered questions.  Supervisor Abler made a motion to approve the 
resolution.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Procek.  Motion carried. 
 
The Committee reviewed the 4th Quarter Variance Reports.  County Administrator Alayne Krause gave 
an overview and answered questions.  Supervisor Procek made a motion to approve the Reports.  
Motion seconded by Supervisor Goehring.  Motion carried. 
 
The Committee discussed Fire and Emergency Medical Services Study.  County Board Chairman Vern 
Koch gave an overview and answered questions.  No action was taken. 
 
The Committee discussed American Rescue Plan Act Subrecipient Reports.  County Administrator 
Alayne Krause gave an overview and answered questions.  No action was taken. 
 
County Administrator Alayne Krause provided an update on the opioid settlement funding and the 
January sales tax revenue.  Administrator Krause is working with Transportation Director Bryan Olson 
and Finance Director Steve Hatton to develop a seven-year sales tax review to present at an upcoming 
County Board meeting.  Administrator Krause also collaborated with Corporation Counsel and the 
Sheboygan County Economic Development Corporation (SCEDC) to finalize the Request for Proposal 
to develop housing at the UW-Green-Bay, Sheboygan Campus.  Additionally, Administrator Krause 
reported that the County’s Fixed Base Operator, Lake Breeze Aviation, at the Sheboygan County 
Memorial Airport has been open for one month.  Customer feedback has been positive, and there has 
been an increase in flight operations since the opening of Lake Breeze Aviation.  Administrator Krause 
also reported on preparations for the upcoming County Board elections, the implementation of Act 4 
for County correctional officers, and the development of an updated salary proposal for the elected 



 

 

County Clerk, Register of Deeds, and Treasurer.  Further, Administrator Krause reported on attendance 
at recent meetings and events such as the annual Chamber Champions Gala, a meeting with the 
Bookworm Gardens Executive Director discuss their expansion plans, a meeting with the United Way 
Executive Director to discuss partnership, a kickoff meeting for the Chamber’s workforce attraction 
campaign, and a meeting with Discover Wisconsin to discuss a potential partnership.  Administrator 
Krause also presented at a meeting of the noon Rotary Club and has a few upcoming presentations 
scheduled for other local organizations.   
 
Supervisor Procek made a motion to go into closed session at 3:41 pm pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 
19.85(1)(c) to consider the annual performance evaluation of the County Administrator.  Motion 
seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried on a unanimous roll call vote.  
 
Supervisor Abler made a motion to go into open session at 3:57 pm.  Motion seconded by 
Supervisor Goehring.  Motion carried on a unanimous roll call vote. 
 
Supervisor Brauer made a motion to approve the annual performance and forward on to the Human 
Resources Department.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Abler.  Motion carried. 
 
Supervisor Goehring requested attendance to the 4th Opioid Abatement Summit in Wisconsin Rapids 
on March 20, 2024.  Supervisor Brauer moved to approve the request.  Motioned seconded by 
Supervisor Procek.  Motion carried. 
 
Vouchers were reviewed.  Supervisor Abler made a motion to approve the vouchers.  Motion 
seconded by Supervisor Brauer.  Motion carried. 
 

The next Executive Committee meeting is scheduled for Thursday, March 28, 2024 at 3:00 PM. 
 
Supervisor Brauer made a motion to adjourn.  Motion seconded by Supervisor Goehring.  Motion 
carried. 

 
 
 

Peggy Osthelder, Recording Secretary  William Goehring, Secretary 























CHAPTER 2
RULES OF ORDER TO GOVERN THE SHEBOYGAN

COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

2.01 RULE I - TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING
2.02 RULE II - QUORUM
2.03 RULE III – PRESIDING OFFICER
2.04 RULE IV - ORDER OF BUSINESS
2.05 RULE V - AGENDA
2.06 RULE VI - VOTING
2.07 RULE VII - GENERAL APPOINTMENTS
2.08 RULE VIII - COMMITTEES
2.09 RULE IX - COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS
2.10 RULE X - COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION AND MEETINGS
2.11 RULE XI - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
2.12 RULE XII - DUTIES OF COMMITTEES

(1) Executive Committee
(2) Finance Committee
(3) Health and Human Services Committee
(4) Health Care Centers Committee
(5) Human Resources Committee
(6) Law Committee
(7) Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee
(8) Property Committee
(9) Transportation Committee

2.13 RULE XIII - REFERRAL OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES
2.14 RULE XIV - RESERVED
2.15 RULE XV - RULE CHANGES
2.16 RULE XVI - PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR
2.17 RULE XVII - PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE
2.18 RULE XVIII - REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES
2.19 RULE XIX - DEBATE
2.20 RULE XX - NEWS MEDIA COVERAGE
2.21 RULE XXI - PUBLIC ADDRESSES TO THE BOARD
2.22 RULE XXII - CONFLICT OF INTEREST
2.23 RULE XXIII – COMPLAINTS

2.01 RULE I - TIME AND PLACE OF MEETING.  The County Board of Supervisors shall meet in 
regular session on the following dates:

(1) The third Tuesday in April.  This meeting shall be the Organizational meeting in even 
numbered years.

(2) The second and fourth Tuesdays in April, in even numbered years.

(3) The third Tuesday in May, June, July, August, and September.

(4) The Tuesday preceding the final Tuesday in October [being the commencement of the 
Annual Meeting, to the extent required by Wis. Stat. § 59.11, and being the date of the 
Initial Budget Presentation pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code].

(5) The final Tuesday in October [being a continuation of the Annual Meeting and being the 
time of the Budget Review and Public Hearing pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code].  No 
other business shall be conducted at this meeting.

(6) The first Tuesday in November.  The meeting shall be the concluding day of the Annual 
Meeting and the Budget Adoption day pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code.

(7) The third Tuesday in December, January, February, and March.



The Board shall meet in special session upon written request of a majority of the Supervisors in 
accordance with Wis. Stat. § 59.11(2).  Any special session request shall include a proposed 
Agenda to be considered at the special session.

All Board meetings shall begin at 6:00 p.m., and all meetings shall be held with open doors in the 
County Board Chambers at the Courthouse in the City of Sheboygan, Wisconsin, and all persons 
conducting themselves in an orderly manner may attend.  Notwithstanding the above, the County 
Board Chair may determine that it is appropriate to alter the meeting location or to convene the 
Board remotely through April 16, 2024, and shall direct the County Clerk to prepare the Agenda 
notifying the public of the alternate meeting location.

2.02 RULE II - QUORUM.  A majority of the members elected shall constitute a quorum. Any member 
may attend remotely.

2.03 RULE III - PRESIDING OFFICER.  The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the Board.  In 
the absence of the Chairperson or at the direction of the Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson shall 
preside.  In the absence of both, the County Clerk shall call the Board to order and the Board 
shall elect one of its members as temporary chairperson.

The Chairperson shall first call the members to order at the hour fixed for the meeting and then 
proceed to call the roll of members, and if a quorum be present, the Journal of the preceding 
meeting shall be presented so that any mistakes can be corrected.  (The Journal for the last 
meeting of the Board term shall be approved by the Chairperson.)

The Chairperson shall preserve and may speak on points of order in preference to other 
members and shall be required to vote on all questions and matters pertaining to the Board.

No Chairperson of the Board of Supervisors shall serve more than two (2) consecutive terms in 
that specific capacity.  A term shall be defined as a period of two (2) full years.

Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 59.12(1), at the Organizational Meeting, the Chairperson from the prior 
preceding Board shall preside until a successor is elected.

2.04 RULE IV - ORDER OF BUSINESS.

(1) For the Organizational Meeting, the order of business shall be:

(a) Call to order.
(b) Certification of compliance with Open Meeting Law.
(c) Pledge of Allegiance.
(d) Invocation.
(e) Roll call.
(f) Administration of the oath of office.
(g) Introduction of Department Heads and Introductory Statements by County 

Administrator.
(h) Adoption of Rules.
(i) Election of Chairperson.
(j) Election of Vice-Chairperson.
(k) Election of additional Executive Committee members.
(l) Introductory Statements by Elected Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson.
(m) Adjournment to the next meeting.

(2) Organizational Election.  Following the Adoption of Rules the outgoing Chairperson shall, 
in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 59.12, direct the County Clerk to direct the Corporation 
Counsel to conduct the election of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, and additional 
Executive Committee members.  The Corporation Counsel shall appoint three Election 
Tellers from among the Department Heads.

(a) Election Announcement.  The Corporation Counsel shall announce the election, 
receive the vote tallies from the Election Tellers for each ballot, and certify to the 
County Board the final result of each ballot and each election.



(b) Election Tellers.  The Election Tellers shall collect the votes from each County 
Supervisor, count the votes, and report the totals to the Corporation Counsel.

(c) Ballots.  Except as provided hereafter, the Organizational Election shall be 
conducted by secret ballot in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 19.88(1).  The voting 
ballots shall be paper ballots supplied by the County Clerk, and shall have no 
writing or marks thereon except that which is placed on the ballot by each voting 
County Supervisor.

(d) Nominations.  The first vote in each election for a given office shall be the 
nominating ballot.  The Corporation Counsel shall display the result of the 
nominating ballot and ask all Supervisors receiving at least one (1)) vote if they 
accept the nomination.  Any County Supervisor declining the nomination will be 
removed from consideration in the election for which the nominating ballot was 
taken.  The nominating ballot cannot serve as an election ballot, even if a 
candidate receives a majority of votes cast.

(e) Election Balloting.  County Supervisors shall cast one (1) vote per ballot for one 
of the names placed in nomination for the office at election by writing the last 
name of the nominee on the voting ballot.  If none of the nominated candidates 
receives at least one vote more than fifty percent (50%) of the votes cast, 
another round of balloting will be held.  Balloting rounds will continue until one of 
the nominated candidates receives at least one vote more than fifty percent 
(50%) of the votes cast, at which point the Corporation Counsel shall declare that 
candidate elected.  Any vote received by the Election Tellers that is unreadable, 
contains extraneous verbiage or marks, is blank, or is cast for a name not in 
nomination will be classified as an abstention, shall reduce the total of votes cast 
by one vote and shall impact the number of votes needed for fifty percent (50%) 
of votes cast to be elected.

(3) The order of business for all other meetings except the budget review session, special 
sessions, and the Organizational Meeting shall be as follows:

(a) Call to order.
(b) Certification of compliance with Open Meeting Law.
(c) Pledge of Allegiance.
(d) Roll call.
(e) Introduction of memorial Resolutions, not requiring Committee referral and action 

thereon.
(f) Approval of Journal.
(g) Committee and other appointments.
(h) Presentations.
(i) Public Addresses to the Board.
(j) Letters, Communications, and Announcements.
(k) County Administrator's report.
(l) Public Hearings.
(m) Reports of Committees on referrals of Resolutions and Ordinances and action 

thereon in the following order:
1. Executive Committee.
2. Other standing committees in alphabetical order.
3. Special committees.

(n) Elections.
(o) Other Committee reports and action thereon, if any.
(p) Introduction of Resolutions, discussion, and action thereon. (All new Resolutions 

referred to Committees shall be read, titles only.)
(q) Introduction of Ordinances, discussion, and action thereon. (All new Ordinances 

referred to Committees shall be read, titles only.)
(r) Grievance Appeals required by Section 48.09 08 of this Code.
(s) Adjournment.

2.05 RULE V - AGENDA.  The Agenda for all County Board meetings shall be prepared by the County 
Clerk subject to the approval of the County Board Chairperson and Vice Chairperson.  All 



Resolutions and Ordinances which at the previous board meeting were referred to Committee 
must be placed on the Agenda to be submitted to the Board unless at the time of the referral a 
longer period of time for reporting out was authorized by the County Board Chairperson or by 
action of the County Board.

The County Clerk shall at least five (5) days before each meeting of the Board [except when the 
Board is in its Annual Meeting session or in special session] e-mail to each Board member the 
Agenda and accompanying documents.  When the Board is in its Annual Meeting session or in 
special session, such e-mailing shall be at least two (2) working days prior to the Board meeting.  
Any documents accompanying the Agenda as electronic mail attachments shall be considered as 
drafts if so identified and may not be relied upon for accuracy.  Revised documents may be 
substituted for documents identified as drafts at any time up to the meeting by the County Clerk.

All matters to be included on the Agenda shall be in the office of the County Clerk by 3:30 p.m. 
one (1) week prior to the meeting.

Any matter which was not timely presented to the Clerk's office and which it is desired to have 
presented to the County Board may be added to the Agenda on the day of the session by 
majority vote of the Board if compliance with the Open Meetings Law has been accomplished.

2.06 RULE VI - VOTING.  All voting required to be publicly recorded shall be done simultaneously 
through the voting machine and when voting is closed, such votes shall be recorded as cast.

2.07 RULE VII - GENERAL APPOINTMENTS.  All appointments requiring confirmation or approval by 
the County Board except appointments of Board members to Committees shall be submitted at 
the time of submitting the Agenda to the County Board members so that the same may be acted 
on at the meeting to which said appointments are first presented.  If the appointments are not 
submitted at such time, they shall be required to lay over until the next session of the Board.

2.08 RULE VIII - COMMITTEES.  The following shall be the standing (liaison) committees of the 
County Board:

(1) Executive Committee (Capital Improvement Committee).
(2) Finance Committee.
(3) Health and Human Services Committee (County Health and Human Services Board).
(4) Health Care Centers Committee (Trustees).
(5) Human Resources Committee.
(6) Law Committee (Emergency Management Committee).
(7) Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee (County Solid Waste 

Management Board and Committee on Agriculture and Extension Education).
(8) Property Committee.
(9) Transportation Committee (Highway Committee).

The above Committees shall also serve as the statutory committees as indicated in parentheses.

Special committees may be created by the County Board for such special purposes or limited 
time as the Board determines.

The Grievance Committee required by Wis. Stat. § 59.26(8)(b) shall be composed of five (5) 
persons, consisting of the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and Secretary of the Law Committee, 
or their designees, and the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson of the Human Resources 
Committee, or their designees.  The jurisdiction of this Grievance Committee shall be limited to 
that set forth in Wis. Stat. § 59.26(8)(b) and shall apply to suspension, demotion, or dismissal of 
sworn law enforcement personnel.  All other grievances arising from the Sheriff’s Department 
shall be handled by the Human Resources Committee in accordance with past practice.  The 
Grievance Committee shall be considered a special committee rather than a standing committee.

2.09 RULE IX - COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS.  All Committee appointments, unless otherwise 
required by Wisconsin Statutes or otherwise voted by the Board, shall be nominated by the 
Executive Committee and confirmed by the majority vote of the Board.



The Executive Committee shall meet within three (3) days following the Organizational Meeting of 
the County Board and on such days thereafter as may be necessary for the purposes of making 
the initial nominations for Committee appointments.

The length of term that a County Board member serves on a Committee shall be determined by 
the Executive Committee to provide the broadest background in the best interest of the County 
and Committee operations, provided that consideration shall be given to the rotation of 
membership on Committees.

No member shall serve on more than three (3) Committees.  First preference for third Committee 
assignments shall go to the elected Executive Committee members except for the County Board 
Chairperson who serves as a non-voting ex officio member of each Committee.

A County Board member shall not serve on a Committee that provides liaison oversight to a 
Department or office that employs a sibling, spouse, or child of the County Board member.

2.10 RULE X - COMMITTEE ORGANIZATION AND MEETINGS.  Unless otherwise specifically 
provided, the organizational structure and duties of each Committee shall be as herein stated:

(1) Membership.  Each Committee shall have five (5) Supervisor members except for the 
Health and Human Services Committee which shall have six (6) Supervisor members.  
The County Board Chairperson shall be an ex-officio member of all Committees.

(2) Organization.  Each Committee shall as its first order of business elect its own 
chairperson, vice-chairperson, and secretary.  No person shall serve as chairperson on 
more than one (1) standing committee nor shall any chairperson serve more than two (2) 
consecutive terms as chairperson of the same committee.  A term shall be defined as a 
period of two (2) full years. 

(3) Committee Secretary.  The secretary shall keep records and minutes of all Committee 
sessions and shall be permitted assistance in his or her duties when deemed necessary 
by the Committee.  The Departments or offices for which such Committee acts as liaison 
to the Board shall, upon the Committee secretary's request, provide any required 
secretarial services to the Committee.  Any Committee which does not act as liaison to 
the Board for a Department or office and all special Committees may request secretarial 
services be provided and the County Administrator shall direct a Department Head or 
elected official, as the County Administrator determines is appropriate under the 
circumstances, to provide such services.  In the event extraordinary expenses are 
incurred (for non-wage items such as materials, supplies, printing, postage, etc.), the 
Executive Committee may authorize reimbursement therefor out of the County Board 
account.

(4) Term.  The Committee shall be organized for a two- (2-) year term.

(5) Meetings.  The organizational meetings shall be called by County Board action.  
Thereafter, all regular meetings shall be scheduled by Committee action.  All regular 
Committee meetings may not be scheduled earlier than 4:00 p.m. without a 2/3 vote of all 
Committee members.  Special meetings may be called with notice to all members by the 
Committee chairperson or on the written request of three (3) Committee members.  The 
Agenda for all Committee meetings shall be prepared by the Committee Secretary or the 
department personnel providing secretarial services to the Committee, subject to the 
approval of the Committee Chairperson or designee.  Committees may meet remotely, or 
any Committee member may call in, through April 16, 2024.Only County Board 
Supervisors who are members of the Committee are eligible for per diem.

(6) Quorum.  A majority of the members of any Committee shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business. Any Committee member may attend remotely or will be counted 
for purposes of quorum.

(7) Minutes.  All Committee secretaries shall as soon as is reasonably possible and 
convenient file a duplicate copy of the minutes of every meeting in the office of the 
County Clerk, and said minutes shall be available for review and informational purposes 



by all County Board members and the general public.  Minutes may be posted as 
"unapproved" until the subsequent meeting when the minutes of the prior meeting shall 
be placed on the Agenda for approval.

(8) Joint Meetings.  Committees may hold joint meetings upon a joint Committee referral of a 
Resolution or Ordinance by the Board Chair or by agreement of the Committee Chairs.  If 
Committees hold joint meetings, the following procedures apply:

(a) A majority of the sum of the members of each Committee constitutes a quorum 
for the joint meeting.

(b) All members of each Committee shall vote on all business at the joint meeting, 
and a majority of the sum of the members present voting affirmatively shall be 
required to pass any measure.

(c) Nothing precludes each Committee from holding its own separate meeting before 
or after a joint meeting if properly noticed.

(d) In the event of a disagreement between Committee Chairs, the Board Chair shall 
designate which Committee Chair shall preside.

2.11 RULE XI - EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE.  The Executive Committee shall consist of five (5) 
members elected by the Board at the Organizational Meeting.  This Committee shall be 
composed of the County Board Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and three (3) Board members.  
The Chairperson of the Board shall preside over the Executive Committee and the 
Vice-Chairperson of the Board shall be Vice-Chairperson of the Executive Committee.

2.12 RULE XII - DUTIES OF COMMITTEES.  Each Committee shall carry out the duties specifically 
delegated to it by the County Board together with such duties as may be authorized by Wisconsin 
Statutes.  Notwithstanding the general duties delegated to a Committee, any action otherwise 
undertaken by a Committee may be reversed or modified by action of the full County Board.  In 
carrying out Committee Liaison responsibilities, each standing Committee shall audit and 
authorize for payment all proper claims and expenses for such office or Department and shall 
review the annual budget requests from the operations of such office or Department prior to 
submittal of the same to the Finance Committee.  Committee members and other Board 
members should direct inquiries for additional information beyond that provided by the 
Department to the Liaison Committee or to the County Administrator.  A general statement of the 
respective Committee duties is as follows:

(1) Executive Committee.  It shall be the duty of the Executive Committee:
(a) To assist the Chairperson in the administration of the County Board's business 

and make recommendations as may expedite the business of County 
government as may from time to time be warranted.

(b) To serve as liaison with the County Administrator and in that capacity to confer 
with the County Administrator from time to time concerning the operation of such 
office and the administration and management of all County Departments and 
offices. 

(c) To nominate for confirmation by the County Board the membership of all 
Committees not otherwise selected.

(d) To recommend changes in the standing rules as may from time to time be 
necessary.

(e) To review all criticism of Board and Committee operations and otherwise meet 
with and advise other Committees and their officers when so requested, and to 
meet with individual Board members to review with them procedural Board 
matters.

(f) To review legislative matters in which the County may have an interest and 
advise the Board accordingly and to promote the passage of legislation which the 
County Board feels is in the best interests of Sheboygan County.

(g) To provide guidance to the County Administrator and participate in the 
development of the County budget and the Five-year Capital Plan as set forth at 
Chapter 5 of this Code.

(h) To act in areas not otherwise delegated by these rules.
(i) To review, audit, and give final approval to Board members' per diem, mileage 

charges, and reimbursement of expense claims.
(j) To function as the Ethics Board pursuant to Chapter 1 of this Code.



(k) To act as the County Economic Development Committee to provide oversight to 
the County's Industrial Development and Revolving Loan Agency.

(l) Approve COVID-19-related expenditures made by the County Administrator.

(2) Finance Committee.  It shall be the duty of the Finance Committee:
(a) To carry out the financial policy of the County as established in the County 

Budget, Board Ordinances and Resolutions, and make recommendations as to 
the interpretation and administration of such policy.

(b) To serve as liaison with the Finance Department, Information Technology 
Department, County Clerk, and County Treasurer and in that capacity to confer 
with them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices and 
Departments.  To the extent that the functions of the Finance Department affect 
constitutional officers, it shall coordinate with such officers the responsibilities of 
such office and the work of the centralized accounting department.

(c) To examine and schedule all accounts, claims, demands, or causes of action 
against the County, unless otherwise delegated.

(d) To audit the claims of all Departments not otherwise delegated and to keep 
supervisory check over those audited by other Committees.

(e) The Committee shall have the authority to authorize payment of any and all dog 
damage claims so long as at the time of the consideration of the claim that the 
Town Chairperson, Village President, or Mayor of the municipality wherein the 
claim arises, or his delegated representative, may participate (without voting 
rights) in the consideration of the claim; and so long as said claim shall not 
exceed One Thousand Dollars ($1,000.00).  The Committee shall further be 
authorized to approve payment of Circuit Court claims within its authority of 
Subparagraph (c) above.

(f) Pursuant to Chapter 5 of this Code, to participate in the preparation of the budget 
for the County and oversee its publication and notice of hearing thereon.

(g) To examine the financial condition of the County each month and when 
necessary advise the County Administrator and Department Heads thereof.

(h) To designate the depositories for all County funds pursuant to Wis. Stat. 
§§ 34.01(1) and 34.05.

(i) To recommend temporary investments and otherwise advise the County 
Treasurer in the management of County funds.

(j) To authorize expenditures not included in the budget pursuant to Chapter 5 of 
this Code.

(k) To have jurisdiction of all matters relating to taxes and assessments, illegal 
taxing, and all questions pertaining to tax certificates.

(l) To have charge of all In Rem. proceedings instituted by the County on tax 
delinquent property.

(m) To have charge of advertising and disposal of all County lands acquired by tax 
deed.

(n) To consult with the County Treasurer when carrying out its responsibilities under 
the provisions of Subsections (l) through (o), above.

(o) The Finance Committee is authorized to contract for audit and operational review 
services as it deems appropriate.  In making audit determinations, the Committee 
shall consult with the Committees of the Departments being audited for their 
recommendations as to the nature of the audit to be performed and the 
determination of who shall make such audit.

(p) To have charge of all property and liability insurance policy issues for the County, 
including all issues relating to the procurement and sufficiency of bonds pursuant 
to Wis. Stat. § 59.21.  The Chairperson shall be a voting member of the 
Committee when carrying out this function.  The Committee may seek bids for a 
combination of liability and worker's compensation insurance policies, but the 
administration of worker's compensation insurance and the awarding of a 
purchase order for the same shall remain within the jurisdiction of the Human 
Resources Department under the oversight of the Human Resources Committee.

(q) Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 74.69(3), to make determinations for the County Board 
of postal service delay or error.

(3) Health and Human Services Committee.  It shall be the duty of the Health and Human 
Services Committee:



(a) To serve as the County Health and Human Services Board as provided in Wis. 
Stat. §§ 46.23(4) and 251.02 and as more particularly set forth in Chapter 10 of 
this Code of Ordinances.

(b) To serve as liaison for the Health and Human Services Department, including 
administration of child support services as required pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 
59.53(5), and the Veterans' Service Office and in that capacity to confer with 
them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices.

(4) Health Care Centers Committee (Trustees).  The Health Care Centers Committee shall 
consist of the five (5) trustees appointed (pursuant to Wis. Wis. Stat. § 46.18).  It shall be 
the duty of the Health Care Centers Committee:
(a) To manage the County Health Care Centers and carry out the duties and 

responsibilities required by Wisconsin law.
(b) To be responsible for the administration of Rocky Knoll Health Care Center 

buildings and related property.  

(5) Human Resources Committee.  It shall be the duty of the Human Resources Committee:
(a) To consider and review all adjustment of salaries of County officers and 

employees and recommend the same to the County Board, unless otherwise 
provided.

(b) To have general supervision of all personnel policies of the County including 
such things as methods of recruitment, sick leave, vacations, paid holidays, and 
leaves of absence and to authorize the granting of increases for all employees 
within the provisions of Chapter 47 of this Code if such increases have had prior 
approval of the Department's Liaison Committee.

(c) To cooperate with the County Administrator and the Department Heads in the 
enforcement of County personnel policies.

(d) To serve as liaison with the Human Resources Department and Corporation 
Counsel and in that capacity to confer with them from time to time concerning the 
operation of their offices and Departments.

(e) To examine and investigate grievances and enforce necessary discipline in 
cooperation with the County Administrator and Department Heads as may from 
time to time be required under collective bargaining agreements or County 
policies.

(f) To act in an advisory capacity to the Finance Director in the administration of the 
Sheboygan County contributions to the Wisconsin Retirement System.

(g) To have oversight of all insurance such as medical expense, life, dental, worker's 
compensation, or otherwise which would be benefits to the employees of 
Sheboygan County and to authorize payment of benefits by County check 
countersigned by the County Board Chairperson, Treasurer, and Clerk.

(h) To act as the liaison to negotiating committee for all labor negotiations under 
Wis. Stat. § 111.70.

(i) To present to the October County Board meeting an annual report of the actual 
cost of health insurance for claims paid during the preceding September through 
August twelve- (12-) month period which shall include the actual cost converted 
to a monthly rate. for the following category groups:

1. Retirees age 65 and over;
2. Retirees under age 65;
3. Active employees.

A. Full-time employees;
B. Part-time employees, including County Board Supervisors.

Said report shall also include a recommended monthly single and family rate for 
the current year for each of the above and any other required classifications for 
County Board approval.full-time and part-time employees and any other 
classifications.

(6) Law Committee.  It shall be the duty of the Law Committee:
(a) To serve as liaison between the Sheriff, Clerk of Courts, District Attorney, 

Medical Examiner, and Circuit Court Commissioner and in that capacity to confer 
with them from time to time concerning the operation of their offices and 
Departments.



(b) To audit and approve all claims and expenses pertaining to the jail, meals to 
prisoners and contracts therefor, charges of transportation of patients and 
prisoners to various institutions, claims of any law enforcement officer for 
services, and to submit a quarterly summary of its audits to the Finance 
Committee.

(c) To consider for confirmation the persons appointedappointment by the Sheriff to 
positions of employmentthe Inspector position as may be required and approved 
for the good operation of said office.

(d) To act as the Emergency Management Committee for the County pursuant to 
Wis. Stat. § 166.03(4)(c).323.14(1). In such capacity, it shall be the duty of the 
Committee:
1. To adopt an effective program of emergency management within the 

County consistent with the state plan of emergency management.
2. To prepare budget requests for funds for the program and audit the 

expenditures thereof.
3. To control and direct the activities of the Emergency Management 

Director and otherwise carry out the provisions of Wis. Stat. § 
166.03(4).323.14.

(e)        To set fees for the Medical Examiner’s office as provided in Wis. Stat. § 59.36.

(7) Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee.  It shall be the duty of the 
Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee:
(a) To serve as liaison with the County Planning Department & Conservation 

Department and conservation, snowmobile, and recreation clubs; and in that 
capacity to confer with them from time to time concerning the operation of their 
offices and to provide oversight for the supervision, management, and control of 
the operation of the Marsh Park, Gerber Lakes, andCounty-owned recreational 
facilities not otherwise assigned to another committee (e.g. Taylor Park), 
County-owned or operated public access to public waters, and 
County-administered recreation trails.

(b) To work toward the coordination of the zoning and building ordinances and land 
use planning of the various municipalities.

(c) To develop data regarding the industrial needs, advantages, and sites in the 
County, to otherwise promote the industrial and commercial activity of the County 
and to provide the continued improvement of the industrial and commercial 
climate of the County.

(d) To cooperate with the Transportation Committee in the oversight of wayside and 
highway parks and access highway rights-of-way.

(e) To have the responsibility and authority for carrying out the purposes of the 
County Solid Waste Management System and when acting in that capacity, it 
shall be known as the County Solid Waste Authority [Wis. Stat. § 59.70(2)].

(f) To serve as liaison between the County Board and the Board of Adjustments.
(g) To act as the County Rural Planning Committee pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 27.019.
(h) To exercise the oversight responsibilities of the non-motorized transportation pilot 

program with the Transportation Committee.  The Chairperson of the Planning, 
Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee shall act as the Chair of any 
joint meeting held with the Transportation Committee for this purpose.

(i) To act as the Committee on Agriculture and Extension Education [Wis. Stat. 
§ 59.56(3)].

(j) To serve as the Land Conservation Committee of Sheboygan County (Wis. Stat. 
§ 92.06).  [The chairperson of the County USDA Farm Service Agency 
Committee created under 16 U.S.C., § 590h(b), shall also be a member when the 
Committee is acting in this capacity, all in accordance with Wis. Stat. § 
92.06(1)(b)(2).]

(k) This Committee is hereby specifically delegated the authority to enter into 
agreements and memoranda of understanding on behalf of Sheboygan County 
with regard to those matters within its statutory authority enumerated in the 
above mentioned under Wis. Stat. chs. 91 and 92. and County-owned 
recreational facilities.

(l) To consider applications for Farmland Preservation Agreements under the 
provisions of Wis. Stat. §§ 91.11 through 91.23 and to make the determination 
for the County Board as to whether the applications should be granted or 



rejected.  In the event the Committee rejects an application, the Committee shall 
include a written statement of the reasons for its recommendation for rejection.  
The Committee shall use only the statutory criteria in making its rejection.  The 
Committee shall use only the statutory criteria in making its determination unless 
this County Board by resolution has specifically established other criterion which 
enhances the agricultural preservation purposes of the law, which additional 
criterion shall be on file with the County Clerk and available to any applicants if 
such other criterion is so established.

(m) To serve as liaison with the Register of Deeds.
(n) To cooperate with the University of Wisconsin and the local U.W. College staff 

whenever necessary and requested in the development of the educational 
phases of the U.W. College or other related matters.To serve as the liaison to the 
UW-Extension.

(o) To approve projects and expenditures from the Monsanto settlement fund.

(8) Property Committee.  It shall be the duty of the Property Committee:
(a) To serve as liaison with the Building Services Department as it provides building 

services to the Administration Building, Detention Center, Human Services 
Building, Courthouse, Law Enforcement Center, Taylor Park, Aging & Disability 
Resource Center, and the Museum and in that capacity to confer with the 
administrative officials from time to time concerning the operation of their 
facilities.

(b) To have charge of permanent improvements, repairs, leases, rentals, and 
maintenance concerning all County buildings and grounds, including parking lots, 
not otherwise assigned by these rules.

(c) To audit and approve all claims referred to them for building repairs and capital 
improvements for any of the aforesaid buildings and grounds.

(d) To serve as liaison to the property related to the U.W. CollegeUW-Green Bay, 
Sheboygan Campus.

(e) To have charge of the U.W. CollegeUW-Green Bay, Sheboygan Campus 
buildings and the property surrounding said buildings known as the U.W. siteUW-
Green Bay, Sheboygan Campus and the access roads adjacent thereto.

(9) Transportation Committee.  It shall be the duty of the Transportation Committee:
(a) To act as the statutory Highway Committee (Wis. Stat. § 83.015) and to carry out 

the provisions of Wis. Stat. § 83.015(2).
(b) To serve as liaison with the Transportation Director and in that capacity to confer 

with the Transportation Director from time to time concerning the operation of 
that office and the Highway Division of the Transportation Department.

(c) Pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 83.035 to supervise contracts entered into with Cities, 
Villages, and Towns within the County borders to construct and maintain streets 
and highways in such municipalities.

(d) To serve as the liaison committee for the Airport Division of the Transportation 
Department supervising all Airport and Fixed Based Operator operations and in 
that regard to lease, regulate, and manage the Airport property; to enforce 
existing leases, contracts, and operational agreements relating to said Airport; to 
negotiate all new contracts and leases that may arise from time to time with 
regard to operations and management of the Airport.

(e) To exercise the oversight responsibilities of the non-motorized transportation pilot 
program with the Planning, Resources, Agriculture, and Extension Committee.

(f) To set special event and overnight parking fee schedules for transient aircraft 
utilizing Airport property.

(g) To grant utility easements at the Airport.

2.13 RULE XIII - REFERRAL OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES.  Except as otherwise 
provided, all Resolutions and main motions (other than procedural or memorial) and all 
Ordinances submitted to the Board shall first be referred by the Chairperson to a Board 
Committee or Committees for a recommendation.  The Committee or Committees shall report 
their recommendation as to said matter to the Board at the next regular meeting of the Board 
except when the Board is in the annual meeting when said report shall be made within two (2) 
session days after referral.



The referral decision of the Chairperson may be modified if on motion and majority vote the Board 
decides to refer the matter in a different manner.

The sponsor of any Resolution or Ordinance which contemplates the expenditure of County funds 
shall submit the proposal to the Finance Department for a fiscal analysis of the proposal.  The 
fiscal analysis shall accompany the Resolution or Ordinance when introduced.

Resolutions and Ordinances shall be automatically placed on the Agenda by the Clerk when the 
report of the Committee is due and shall thereupon be considered by the Board.  Where the 
Committee Report recommends adoption or enactment subject to amendatory language, the 
Resolution or Ordinance may be brought forward on the Board floor by a motion to adopt or 
enact, by a motion to adopt or enact as amended in accordance with the Committee Report, or by 
a motion to "file."  A motion may also be made to grant the Committee additional time upon 2/3 
vote of the Board members present or if authorized by the County Board Chairperson.  Where a 
motion is made to "file" a Resolution or Ordinance indefinitely without further action, the file 
motion is debatable.

Resolutions and Ordinances may be withdrawn (pulled) from Committee without action by the 
said Committee at any time by 2/3 vote of the Board members present as to Ordinances and 
majority vote as to Resolutions, provided that adequate notice of anticipated withdrawal action is 
made to the Clerk and Chairperson so that the Agenda reflects the anticipated withdrawal action.  
The Board member who moves for the measure to be withdrawn shall offer an explanation as to 
why the measure should be withdrawn from Committee.A memo offering an explanation as to 
why the measure should be withdrawn from Committee shall accompany the Ordinances or 
Resolutions.

No Resolutions or Ordinances may be introduced at the final meeting of the term of a Board 
(second Tuesday in April in even numbered calendar years) or at the first regular meeting of a 
term of a Board (fourth Tuesday in April in even numbered calendar years).

2.14 RULE XIV - Reserved.

2.15 RULE XV - RULE CHANGES.  No standing rule shall be rescinded, changed, or suspended 
except by a 2/3 vote of the Board.

2.16 RULE XVI - PRIVILEGE OF THE FLOOR.  The privilege of the floor is limited to County Board 
members and its Clerk, County Administrator, and Corporation Counsel unless the same is 
granted by majority consent of the Board.  The Chairperson may grant privilege of the floor to 
County Department Heads or elected officials or others with pertinent information to answer 
questions regarding matters before the Board unless objection thereto is voiced by any member 
present, and if such objection is made, a motion and majority vote will then be required.  Any 
person granted privilege of the floor by vote of the Board shall limit his or her remarks to ten (10) 
minutes unless for good cause such time limitation is extended by the Chairperson.

2.17 RULE XVII - PARLIAMENTARY PROCEDURE.  Except as modified by the herein rules or as 
required by the Wisconsin Statutes, the rules of parliamentary practice in Robert's Rules of Order 
shall govern in all cases where they are applicable, and a copy of said Robert's Rules of Order 
shall be placed on the desk of each memberprovided to each member upon request.

2.18 RULE XVIII - REIMBURSEMENT FOR SERVICES.  Each Board member shall for each day he or 
she attends a meeting of the Board receive mileage as determined by Chapter 5 of this Code for 
each mile traveled in going and returning from said meetings by the most usual traveled route 
and he or she shall be entitled to compensation at the rate as determined by County Board 
Resolution for all mileage necessarily and actually traveled in connection with all Committee 
services.

Each Board member shall, by the 20th day of each month, make efforts to submit to the County 
Clerk's office an expense account statement indicating County Board and Committee Meetings 
attended, together with mileage and other allowable expenses incurred during the preceding 16th 
to 15th thirty- (30-) day period.  If a Board member fails to submit his or her mileage 
reimbursement at least every three (3) months, there shall be no mileage reimbursement.  The 
County Clerk's office shall review the statement for accuracy and compliance with County 



Ordinances.  Such payment shall be made monthly subject to reimbursement for any payments 
not approved upon subsequent audit by the Executive Committee.

Non-board members who serve on standing or special committees shall be entitled to meals and 
mileage reimbursement as provided for in Chapter 45 of the County Code of Ordinances unless 
there is a specific prohibition against such reimbursement.

2.19 RULE XIX - DEBATE.  The Board recognizes the fundamental right of each of its members to be 
heard on every debatable issue and to that end no call of the question nor other motion to limit 
debate shall be in order so long as any member shall desire to speak to the same question if 
such member has not already addressed the issue for more than ten (10) minutes or has been 
recognized to speak three (3) times on the issue.

2.20 RULE XX - NEWS MEDIA COVERAGE.  In furtherance of the declaration of the open meetings 
policy of Wis. Stat. § 19.81 which provides that the public is entitled to the fullest and most 
complete information regarding the affairs of government as is compatible with the conduct of 
governmental business; and whenever the Board or its Committees are meeting in open session, 
such body shall make a reasonable effort to accommodate any person desiring to record, film, or 
photograph the meeting as provided by Wis. Stat. § 19.90.

(1) Use of Equipment. Recording, filming, or photographing shall not be carried on in a 
manner that interferes with the conduct of the meeting or the rights of participants.

(2) Sound and Light Criteria.  Only audio and visual equipment which does not produce 
distracting light or sound may be used to cover County proceedings.  Artificial lighting 
devices shall not be used in connection with equipment except in those circumstances 
where such auxiliary devices are necessary and then only with the advance consent of 
the Chairperson.

(3) Location of Equipment and Personnel.  Operators of camera equipment and news 
reporters shall have free access to all areas open to the public.  The Executive 
Committee may make provisions for placement of equipment and accommodations for 
news reporters and equipment operators within the Board area.  Operators and news 
personnel may set up their equipment within such area prior to the proceedings but shall 
not move about so as to distract during the proceedings themselves.

2.21 RULE XXI - PUBLIC ADDRESSES TO THE BOARD.  Public addresses to the Board which are 
permitted shall be subject to the following limitations:

(1) Persons desiring to address the Board shall register such intention with the County 
Clerk's Office after the prior County Board meeting, but not later than 5:00 p.m. on the 
Monday preceding the County Board meeting.

(2) Not more than ten (10) persons shall be permitted under the provisions of this rule to 
speak at any County Board meeting.

(3) Reservation for public addresses shall be granted on a first come, first served basis.  
Persons who have not previously addressed the Board shall have priority over other 
registrants.

(4) Announced candidates for public office may be granted the privilege to address the 
County Board during the term of the candidacy, provided, in the judgment of the 
Chairperson, subsections (5), (6), and (7) are strictly followed.

(5) Addresses shall be on subjects relevant to County government.

(6) Addresses shall be limited to five (5) minutes.

(7) No personal attacks shall be made on any individual nor shall disrespect for the County 
Board rules of procedure or its decorum be engaged in.



(8) The opportunity for public addresses to the Board is reserved to members of the public to 
express their opinions.  Supervisors have the right and opportunity to express their 
opinions and speak at Committee meetings and during debate under Rule XIX.

The Chairperson shall be responsible for enforcing the conditions of public appearances.

2.22 RULE XXII - CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  If a Supervisor has a conflict of interest deemed illegal 
by state law or by the County Code of Ethics such that the Supervisor should abstain from voting 
on a matter in committee and/or at a Board meeting, such Supervisor must abstain from direct 
and indirect participation in all proceedings related to such matter.  If a Supervisor concludes that 
no illegal conflict exists in a matter but intends to abstain from voting on such matter to avoid the 
appearance of a conflict, the Supervisor shall also abstain from direct and indirect participation in 
all proceedings related to such matter.  A violation of this Rule shall constitute a violation of the 
Code of Ethics and shall be subject to Chapter 1 of this Code.

2.23 RULE XXIII - COMPLAINTS.  Complaints or concerns about Sheboygan County employees 
which come to the attention of a County Board member shall be referred to the County 
Administrator.  The County Administrator may investigate the matter in such manner as he or she 
determines is appropriate or may refer the matter to another person or persons for investigation.  
If the complaint relates to the County Administrator, it shall be referred to and investigated or 
referred by the County Board Chairperson.

The County Administrator or other person to whom the investigation was delegated will report the 
outcome of the investigation to the County Board member or to the Liaison Committee if it is 
appropriate to do so.  Anonymous complaints may be investigated if the interests of the County 
will be served by doing so, but there is no obligation to respond to an anonymous complaint.

History:  Ord. 2 (2011/12); Ord. 1 (2012/13); Ord. 5 (2013/14); Ord. 14 (2013/14); Ord. 3 (2014/15); Ord. 7 
(2014/15); Ord. 8 (2014/15); Ord. 9 (2015/16); Ord. 2 (2020/21); 


